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re lat ivery prompt ly.  r  appreciate that .  we had

preliminary matters this morning and we have now

concluded those and we,re prepared to resume with the

tr ia l  test imony in th is case

The testimony that you are about to hear is

that of  Ms. sassower.  unr ike the pr ior  test imonial

evidence you have heard,  Ms. sassower wi l r  not  be

questioned. by a lawyer. Rather, because she represents

hersel f ,  she is ent i t led to test i fy in a narrat ive form.

So she wiII address you once she, s sworn

And therefore,  the next test imony that you,r l  hear

be that of  the defendant,  Ms. Elena Ruth sassower.

w e I 1 .

L n .

w i l l

Very

MS. SASSOWER: Thank you.

THE CLERK: pl_ease raise your right hand..

ELENA RUTH SASSOWER,

having been eal led as a wi tness for and on her behal f ,

and after having been first duly sworn by the deputy

c le rk ,  was  examined and tes t i f ied  as  fo l lows:

DIRECT TESTIMONY

MS . SASSowER: Good morning. My name is Erena

Ruth sassower and r am the criminal defendant. r have

no obl igat ion t ,o test i fy here tod.ay.  r  come before you

with the presumption of  innocence. But r  am innocent in

fact and so r embrace the opportunity to speak with you

1 2 1 7 6 2 4
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d i rec t , l y .

My tes t imony is  subs tan t ia ted  by

eontemporaneous notes t.hat r take as my normal and

customary course of  pract ice.

The contemporaneous diary entries of phone

conversations were moreover embodied. by me at the time

of the events in quest ion,  in correspond.ence, onry a

port ion of  which you are being al- Iowed to see.

At the out,set ,  I  wi I I  ident i fy that  apart

f rom being an indiv idual  c i t izen, r  am the co-founder

and coordinator of  a non-part isan non-prof  i t  c i t i  zer! .s,

o rgan iza t ion  ca l led  the  Center  fo r  Jud ic ia l

Aceountab i l i t y .

To be very br-unt , w€ document how j udges break

the law and get away with i t .  And as part  of  that ,

documentat ion,  because everything that we do is

d.oeumented, we examine the processes of  judic ia l

s e l e c t i o n  a n d  j u d i c i a l  d i s c i p l i n e .

The reason that, what I do

i t s  documen ta t i on  i s  because  peop le

corrupt ion are a lways d ismissed.  out

many woul_d l ike i t  to be pretended

r e a l l y  d o e s n r t  e x i s t .

is  so met icu l_ous in

who complain about

of  hand because so

that eorruption

Lit igants who come to court ,  whet.her as

p la in t i f f s ,  whether  as  de fend.an ts ,  when they  compla in

1218 625
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about,  judges, they are dismissed as disgrunt led

l i t i g a n t s .  T h e y  l o s t  t h e  c a s e .  S o  o f  c o u r s e  t h e y , r e

complaining about the judge, sour grapes.

Oh,  no .  you  can lose  a  case t ,haE as  a

matter of  law you are ent i t led to win because of

misconduct of  a judge. How, how do you ascertain the

misconduct ,  o f  a  judge? I t . ' s  very  easy .

A case f i le is the evidence of  what took

p l a c e  i n  a  c a s e .  I t ' s  n o t ,  j u s t  h e  s a i d / s h e  s a i d r  f o u

can look at  the record

And one of  the th ings that we part icurarry do

is  ver i f y  how judges  l ie  in  the i r  jud ic ia r  d .ec is ions .

They  fa ls i f y  fac ts ,  mater ia l  fac ts  as  a  case is  a lways

dependent on the facts because the law fl_ows from the

f a c t s .

When a judge l ies about the facts,  preLends

there  are  fae ts  wh ich  don ' t  ex is t  and you can te l l

whet.her they exist by whether they are in the reeord,

tha t  i s  very  ser ious  misconduct .

And i t  is  a l l_ the more ser ious when a

judge l - ies about facts and d.oes i t  to disregard the
a4d

controL}ing law when=*s adheres to that on what is known

as reargument.

Anybody can make a mistake.  Anybody can s l ip

up -  Bu t  m isconduc t  i s  w i l l f u l  and  de l i be ra te .  No t

1219 6 2 6
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oops, accident,  inadvertenee

There is a procedure in the law when you

bel ieve that,  a judge has made a mistake, Lo br ing

forward  the  t rue  fac ts ,  the  record  fac ts ,  the

control l ing law to a judge.

And when the party does that and a judge

nonethe less  adheres  to  the  in i t . ia l -  dec is ion ,  usua l ly

without any reason, then you know that what the judge

did was not a mistake, was not unintent ionar but wirr fu l

and del iberat ,e.

Okay, moving along . I have been doing t.his

work for, since rg}g and our members are from throughout

the country.  They are Democrats,  they are Republ icans,

they are old, they are young, they are peopre who have

found that there are no remedies for  judic ia l

misconduct because al l -  the supposed remedies don' t

e x i s t  i n  f a e t .

The complaint ,  mechanisms, they,  re worthless,

t hey ' re  w indow

a f fo rd  the  case

on  appea l .

rubber stamp af f i rmances.

oversight by judges al_so

dress i r tg .  Appeal ,  most  people can bare ly

in  the t r ia l  cour t ,  le t  a lone going up

And so often on appeal you get these

Requests for  supervisory

d o e s n ' t  e x i s t .  A l l  r i g h t .

Pr io r  t o  March  2OO3 when  p res iden t  Bush

1220 6 2 7
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nominaLed New York court of Appeals Judge Richard wesley

to the second circui t ,  court  of  Appeals,  r  had already

spent over a decade document ing t ,he complete d. is interesL

of the senat,e , rudic iary commit tee in reviewing evidence

of  nominee un f i tness .

I had demonstrated that t ime and again in

wri t ten submissions, always support ,ed by the

substant iated evidence and had not only documented. the

refusal  of  the senate ,Judic iary commit tee to examine

evidence of nominee unf itness, but .ef evidence that the

bar  assoc ia t ions ,  wh ich  pray  a  ro l -e  in  the  process ,  were

not conduct ing thorough, adequate,  honest

invest igat ions

Once again,  f  wish to emphasize to you

tha t  what  had been presented  in  Lgg2,  in  j_993,  in

1 '996,  in  l -998,  in  200L were  fac t -spec i f  i c ,  documented,

document-supported wri t ten submissions of  a danqerous

s t a t e  o f  a f f a i r s

And the Senate .Tudiciary Commit,tee never

cared. when r  say never cared, nobody wourd d. iscuss

any th ing  presented  on  the  sub jec t .

This is not a s i tuat ion where counsel  of  the

senate .Judic iary commitLee, senators of  the senate

Jud ic ia ry 's  commi t tee  den ied  or  d ispu ted .  what  was be ing

presented .

1221 628
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There was never anyone to talk to. And you

courd. write and write and write, and you ean eaLr and

ca l l  and  ca l l -  and  i t  d idn , t  ma t te r  and  they  d idn , t  ca re .

You have already heard that in Lgg6, there was

an oceasion when r was at a senate .fud.iciary committee

hear ing to conf i rm a federal  judic ia l  nominee.

pr ior  to the hear ing,  r  had wri t ten and carred

repeatedly request ing to wel-1,  f i rst ly ident i fy ing

that there was evidenee that the nominee in guestion had

committed serious judicial miseonduct as a New york

judge, ident, i fy ing fur ther that  r  wished to test i fy at

any hear ing to be held.

rn 1995, there was no return cal l  f rom counsel

inquiring as to the specifies of the miseonduet that was

only passingly ident i f ied in correspondence. There was

no reguest for t.he evidentiary proof of that miscond.uct.

And as to my repeated. requests to test i fy at

any conf i rmat ion hear ing to be held,  weI l ,  r  wasn,t  even

told of the hearing unti l the morning on which it was to

t a k e  p I a c e .

A couple of  d.ays pr ior  thereto,  r  had received

a lett,er from chairman Hatch or maybe r shourd say it

was signed by chairman Hatch, although one doesn, t know

i f  the  s ignature  is  ac tua l l y  h is  s ignat ,u re .

r  might ident i fy by way of  background that 30

122?

2 5
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years ago r  was an intern working on capi to l  Hi l l  and

senators had machines that.  make Lheir  s ignature.

But  a t  leas t  in  1996,  a  coup le  o f  days  pr io r

to the hear ing,  r  had gotten a let ter  purportedly s igned

by chairman Hatch saying no, r  woul-dn' t  be permit ted.  to

test , i fy  and giv ing no reasons why.

And you can be sure that I immediately

wrote back. And r  said,  but  chairman Hatch, why wonrt  r

be permit ted to test i fy? And your staf f  has never even

contacted me about the part icul-ars .#"onduct of  the

g iven judge.

How can this hear ing even be taking place

unless you examine the evidence. unless rrve been

interviewed. But won,t  you give f t€,  won,t  you

reconsider your peremptory wi thout reason let ter  that  r

w o n ' t  b e  p e r m i t t e d  t o  t e s t i f y .

When f  got  the cal l  that  the Senate

Judic iary commit tee hear ing was going to be taking

that af ternoon, r  had not as yet  gotten a response

le t te r ,  my fo l1ow-up le t te r  to  Cha i rman Hatch .

p lace

t,o my

And immediately,  f  said to the staf f

member who called me about the hearing that was to take

place that af ternoon, wel-r ,  drTr r  going to be permit ted

to  tes t i f y?  And there  was no  response to  tha t  ques t ion .

But in the hope that I would have an

1223 630
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opportuni ty to test i fy about the ser ious and sta,

substantial misconduct of that particuLar New york judge

that was being elevated to a federar judgeship,  r  took a

car service to Ehe airport ,  took a f l ight  f rom New york,

where we are based, so that r  could be in D.c.  for  the

2 : 0 0  p . m .  h e a r i n g .

You can imagine arr- the expense that was

entai led,  but surface transportat ion was an

impossibi l i ty .  From the morning to two, there was no

cho ice ,  I  had to  f I y .

To make the story short, and the story that, r

te l l  you ,  be l ieve  i t  o r  no t  on ly  in  b r ie f ,  i s  a r1

particularized in contemporaneous correspondence that r

wrote then and immediately

THE COURT: your tes

MS.  SASSOWER:  therea f te r .

THE eouRT: your testimony, your testimony.

Ms- SASSowER: yes.  And i f  r  eould introduce r

w i l l  in t roduce.

THE COURT: Ms. Sassower,  your test imony

p l e a s e .

MS. SASSowER: when r  arr ived at  that  June 25th

]-996 senate ,Judic iary commit tee hear ing,  r  couId not

find anyone to tell me whether or not r woul_d be

permi t ted  to  tes t i f y .2 5
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And I was subjected to harassment and

intimidation by the clerk who was my contact person at

the commit tee, who cal led capi t ,o l  pol ice.  And there

were at ,  least  f ive capi t ,o l  pol ice of f icers at ,  the

hearing, and I understood for me.

As that hearing was concluding may r refer to

a document please?

THE COURT: No

Ms . sASSowER: As that hearing was conclud.ing

but had not concruded and the presiding chairman,

senator Ky1e, began to announce that the record would

remain open three days for wr i t ten submissions, t ,hat  is

everything was concruded at the hearing, and he was

f in ishing of f ,  and i t ,  s then that f  rose

And I  sa id ,  Mr .  Cha i rman,  there 's  c i t i zen

opposi t ion,  r  request to test i fy.  And he ignored. what r

was saying. And then r  said may we tes,  may r  test . i fy

and he said we wi1l  have order.

He did.n, t  respond may I  test  ! fy,  he said we

wi l l  have order.  And at  least  one of  the of f icers

approached me, didn' t  remove me, d. id.nrt  ask me to l_eave

the room, simply said if you say another word you wirl

be removed.

so of  course r  d id.n ' t  say another word.  and. r

was not removed. And senator Kyle then went on to say2 5

1225 632
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the record wilr remain open three days. Anyone who has

wri t ten submissions including dry,  f rom the audienee,

anyone who has written submissionsr )rou can make it,

wi th in three days.

The hearing eonclud.ed. And r had not been abre

prior to t.he hearing to ascertain what the bar

assoc ia t ion  ra t ing  o f  th is  federa l  jud ic ia r  nominee was.

And r had been advised. in chairman Hatch, s

let ter  to me, that  same let ter  that  had said r  woul_d not

be permit ted to test i fy wi thout giv ing reasons, that  the

bar rating would only be available at the eonfirmation

hear ing i tsel f

WelI ,  i t  wasnrt  announced dur ing the

conf i rmat ion hear ing what the nomineers rat ing had been.

so after the hearing was concluded, r went into the

senate Judic iary commit tee of f ices to request the bar

assoc ia t ion  ra t ing .

rn i t ia l l y ,  s t ,a f f  a t  the  senate  Jud ic ia ry

commit tee didn' t  want t ,o give me that.  But then r

pu11ed out the let ter  f rom chairman Hatch and r  said

look, i t  says r ight  here that that  informat ion wir l  be

avai l -abre at  the hear ing.  so now werve had the hear ing,

may f have that bar rating?

so r  wai ted, and meanwhir-e three of f icers wai ted

with me. And the clerk came back, he wr i ,  he wrote the
2 5
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rating of the nominee and the other nominees whose

conf i rmat ion was the subject  of  the hear ing.

And r should tell you that, the nominee that r

sought to oppose had the lowest rating, had a mixed

rat ing of  guaLi f ied/not qual i f ied.

As I  exi ted the, the of f ices of  the Senate

.Tudic iary commit tee, r ,  one of  the of f icers asked i f

they could see my ident i f icat ion.  And r  had no problem

with that .  I  gave him my ident i f ieat ion.

. And r had a very nice conversation. r had been

having a nice conversat ion wi th the of f icers.  r  assumed.

when Lhey asked for my ident i f icat ion that they s imply

wanted to write up what had taken place, how they had

spent the previous hour in which they were at the senate

, Iudic iary Commit tee and survei l l ing me.

And I began to recount to a woman officer,

there were two male of f icers and a woman of f icer,  what

had happened. four years earlier when r had come down to

the Senate .Tudiciary Committee

, And how at that t ime f had come down not

because there was any hearing but because the evidence

that we had presented to the senate ,fudiciary committee

was so ser ious and substant ia l ,  and r  would.  wr i te and

cal- l  and nobody would speak to me.

f  could,  could never speak to counsel  and f  had

1227 6 3 4
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t r ied to make a meet ing wi th counsel .  And f inal ly,  in

desperat ion,  r  decided just  to come down to see i f  r

courd meet wi th counsel  .  we1l ,  rat ,her than meet ing

with me they cal led the pol ice on me.

And r reeounted to the female officer how when

the por ice arr ived, the f i rst  th ing they said is what,  s

the matter.  And r  said you see, you asked me what 's the

matter but the senate ,Judiciary committee d.oesn,t want,

to know what the matter is.

They don,t  want to address what werve been

documenting as to the dysfunction

THE COURT: Move it along please

MS. SASSOWER: fn any event,  in 199G, af ter  the

maLe of f icer took my ident i f icat ion,  he proceeded to t ry

to get my sociar secur i ty number.  r t  was not just  for

purposes of writ ing up a, an innocent report,.

And when I questioned him about what he was

doing and his right to have my license, he threatened

me. He arrested me on a compretery bogus, t rumped.-up

disorder ly conduct charge.

But I was for your purposes, the most

important thing for you to know is that r was not

ar res ted  in  L996 fo r  reques t ing  to  tes t i f y  a t  the  senate

Judic iary Commit tee hear ing.  Okay.

Now Ie t ' s  fas t  fo rward .  The per t inent  fac ts  as

1228 6 3 s
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to that arrest and the documents as to that arrest as

werr as the years of our advocacy and my advocaey in

part icurar,  wi th the senate . fudic iary commit tee was set,

for th in a very extensive let , ter  in ,Jury 2oo! that  went,

that was ad.dressed. to Senator Schumer.

senator schumer is not only New york, s home

staters senator,  he's a member of  the senate . rud. ic iary

commit tee. And in the summer of  2001, he was the

chairman of the Court, s subcommittee.

And he was then holding hearings about the

process of  federal  judic ia l  conf i rmat ion,  and in

connection with those hearings r wrote a very extensive

l e t t e r .

These le t te re  a re  no t  jus t  le t te rs ,  they , re

reports,  okay, part icular izLng l -o years of  exper ience

with the senate Judic iary commit tee and their

dis interest  in examining evidence of  nominee unf i tness

and the problem with bar ratings. Okay

That lett.er not only went to Senator

but because of  the ser iousness of  what was set

sent copies to every member of  the commit tee,

Senate leadership,  to Senator Cl inton.

Schumer,

fo r th ,  f

to the

And in my cover retter to senator cl inton, r

said, lou know, |ou l ive in chappaqua, New york and we

are only 15 minutes away from your home and we invite
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you to v is i t  us so that you ean see the work of  our

c i t i zens '  o rgantza t ion .

we didn' t ,  get  any response to that  let ter  f rom

senator  c l in ton 's  o f f i ce ,  d idn ' t  ge t  any  response f ro rn

senator schumer to th is reci tat ion of  what was going on

in the senate .fudiciary committee and bar ratings and no

response from anyone eLse.

Now we're on to March 2oo3 and president Bush, s

nominat ion of  Richard wesley to the second circui t ,  court

o f  Appea ls .

t o

I  introduce to you a Letter that  I  wrote

THE COURT: The, the exhibi t  number please.

MS. SASSOWER: Exhibi t  Number 39 which is my

March 14th l -et ter  to the senate Judic iary commit tee, in

part icular to the nominat ions c lerk for  the Republ ican

m a j  o r i t y .

The commi t tee  is  very  par t i san .  f t  has  a

Demoerat ic s ide,  and has the Republ ican side, and this

correspondence went to both s ides. And you wi l l  see

t h a t .

And the let ter  ref l -ects my phone conversat ion

with the c lerks of  the senate Judic iary commit tee

Repubrican side, ident i fy ing our strenuous opposi t , ion to

Richard  wes ley 's  conf i rmat ion  to  the  second c i rcu i t

Court  of  Appeals and request ing t .o test i fy in

1230
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oppos i t ion .

And asking among other th ings, quote,  p lease

also send any wri t ten informat ional_ mater ia l  about.  the

commi t tee '  s  conf i rmaL ion  process .

This wourd incrude informat ion concerning the

commit . tee'  s invest igat ive procedures upon receiv ing

not i f i ca t ionrsuch as  th is ,  o f  c i t i zen  oppos i t ion  and.

requests  to  tes t i f y  in  oppos i t ion .

Th is  wou ld  a lso  inc lude the  Commi t tee ,s

wri t t .en standards for evaluat ing the quar i f icat ions of

federal  judic iar  nominees, includ. ing the weight accorded

to  bar  assoc ia t ion  ra t ings ,  such as  those o f  the

Ameriean Bar Associat ion and the Associat ion of  the Bar

o f  the  C i ty  o f  New york .

There was never any response from the senate

Jud. ic iary commit t ,ee to that  request f  or  i ts  rures,

regu la t ions ,  p roc€dures ,  upon rece iv ing  no t i f i ca t ion ,

such as  th is ,  o f  c i t i zen  oppos i t ion  and requests  to

t e s t i f y .

What f  d id receive,  however,  was something

that r  had requested because again i lve been doing this

for many years.  r  had requested the pubr ic port ion of

the quest ionnaire that .  ,Judge wesley had to f i l t  out  for

the Senate ,Judic iary Commit tee.

The Senate Judic iary  Commit tee has a
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quest ionnaire,  the nominee has to respond. There is a

publ ic port i -on t ,hat  is  made pubr ic ly avai labre,  and

there  is  a  conf ident ia l  por t ion .  And r  had requested

the  pub l ic  por t ion .

Indeed, f  had requested the publ ic port ion

not only of Judge wesrey but of another individuar who

was also nominated on t .he same d.ate by president.  Bush,

not to a Court  of  Appeals judgeship,  which is an

intermediate appel late judgeship in the federal  system,

but  to  a  D is t r i c t  cour t  judgesh ip .  r  d id  rece ive  the ,

the  pub l ic  por t ion  o f  the i r  ques t ionna i res .

And based upon not only on my d.irect,

f i rst-hand exper ience with Judge wesley and. the

experience of another member of the Center for Judicial

Accountabi l i ty ,  and, and weaving i t  together wi th an

analysis of  Judge Wesley,  s response, f  prepared a

wr i t ten  s ta tement  o f  oppos i t ion .

And the wri t ten statement of  opposi t ion

described what rrudge wesley had done on New york, s

highest,  stat .e court ,  which is our New york court  of

Appeals,  concerned his miscond.uct ,

THE eouRT: No. you stated that your statement

concerned your opposi t ion.  The detai ls of  that

oppos i t ion  are  no t  re levant .  to  th is  case.  Go ahead.

M S .  S A S S O W E R :  I t  i n c l u d e d  h i s  l i e s .

1232 639



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

1 0

11_

l 2

1 3

t4

L 5

1 6

t 7

1 8

L 9

2 0

2 t

2 2

z 5

2 4

2 5

6 4 0

THE couRT: Ms. sassower, when r ask you to

proceed ,  -  -

MS .  SASSOWER: Okay.

TI{E COURT: _ _ f mean exact,ly that .

Ms- SASSOwER: Ar1 r ight .  The statement nor,

only gave an overview of what he had d.one in two public

interest ,  cases involv ing

TIIE eOItRT: Excuse me.

qui t ,e c lear.

I think that f was

MS.  SASSOWER:  I  d idn , t ,  I ,m no t  gonna go  in to

the  spec i f i cs  o f  what  he  d id .

THE COURT: Move on.

MS. sAssowER: rE ident i f ied the evidence that

would substant iate the ser ious assert ions made in the

overview statement.  Okay.

On April 23rd,, moving from March 14th, t,he

let ter  to the senate ,Judic iary commit tee request ing

information about its standards for evaluating

candidate's f i tness and i ts ruLes and procedures.

on Apr i r  23rd,  r  hand-del_ivered to the New york

c i ty  o f f i ces  o f  New york rs  home s ta te  senators ,  char res

schumer and Hir lary Rod.ham cl inton, ident icar paekages

t o  e a c h .

r  addressed a  cover  le t te r  spec i f i ca l ry  to

them, not.  ident. ical  cover let ters,  asking that they use
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that  speciar prerogat ive they have, ds the home state

senators,  to prevent th is nominat ion f rom going forward

to  conf i rmat ion .

f  am not only a const iLuent l iv ing in New

York of these two New york senators, what was involved

was a powerful  federal  judgeship.

The Second Circui t ,  Court .  of  Appeals s i ts

in Manhattan. The second circui t ,  for  your informat ion,

covers three states:  New york,  Vermont,  connect icut .

I  had del ivered to the New york of f ices

ident ica l  cover  l -e t t ,e rs ,  r 'm sor ry ,  iden t ica l  packages

with separate cover l -et ters.  But each of  them got a

copy of  the other 's eover let ter .  And r  provided a copy

of the

THE COURT: No, that  wi l l  be str icken. That

w i l l  b e  s t r i c k e n .

MS.  SASSOWER:  f ,m not  go ing  to  d iscuss  the

eonten t .

THE couRT:  we l l  i t  seems tha t  tha t ' s  exac t lv

what  you ' re  about  to  do .

MS.  SASSOWER:  f rm not  go ing  to  d iscuss  the

conten t .  T 'm go ing  to  ident i f y

THE COURT: Identify the documenLs in the

MS.  SASSOWER:  Excuse  me?

packet?
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THE COURT: Identify the documents in the

packet?

'  
Ms. sAssowER: only general ly because you have

precluded me from, from

THE COURT: Ms . Sassower, don't argrue with me

from the witness stand..  f  rve ruled.

Ms. SASSowER: okay. They were provided with

the overrriew statement as to the misconduct and the key

documents substantiating that miseonduct .

The key documents from the record of the t,wo

publ ic interest ,  cases that came before Judge wesley

si t t ing on New york 's court  of  Appears.  The d.ocument,arv

evidenee in that package sufficed.--
/

. rc  was  su f f i c ien t  in  and o f  i t se l f  to  es tab l i sh

what ,Judge wesley had done and done both individuarly

and co l lec t i ve ly  w i th  h is  fe l low judges ,  bo th .

Addi t ionalry,  s inee there had never been any

response from senators schumer and clinton to the letter

o f  two years  ear l ie r ,  TOOL,  . fu ly  2OOi_ ,  f  p rov ided.

THE COURT: What 's the exhibi t  number?

Ms.  SASSowER:  we l I ,  th is  i s  a r l  par t  o f  the

cumulat . ive Exhibi t  37.

THE COURT: Very wel_l.

MS. SASSOWER: The package.

THE COURT: Then i t  wi l l  not  be referred to.
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PIease proceed.

Ms . SASSowER: rn other word.s, r wasnr t, making

wild al legations, charges of misconduct by ,Judge wesley.

r was providing somet,hing that was detailed, facE-

specif ic,  documented.

At the same time, because there is some sort of

internal courier system that the senators have in New

York wi th their  washington of f iees,  r  requested senator

schumer's of f ice to,  to carry,  to t ransmit  th is paekage

of material- s that i l  ve provid.ed to schumer, that y ve

prov ided to  C l in ton .

r had two other packages: one for the Republican

maj ority senate ,Judiciary committee and one f or the

Democrat ic minor i ty of  Ehe senate ,Judic iary commit tee.

so that they would have at that moment the

ovenriew statement identifying the misconduct. and the

pert inent substant iat ing doeuments.

r was never abr-e to verify, r was never abre to

get a straight answer f rom senat,or schumer's of f ice,

f rom the Republ ican major i ty s ide of  the senate

.Tudic iary commit tee, f rom the Demoerat ic minor i ty s id.e
_&n<-€-

of the scrnenE [si nL, senate Judiciary committee whether

they ever got that  package of  mater iars that  r  had l_ef t

wi th senator schumer's of f ice to have transmit ted

int .ernal ly to them
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And as to senator c l intonrs of f iee,  wer l ,  r  ref t
message af ter  message af ter  message for Leecia Eve as to

whether or not she received this Apr i l  23rd hand-

delivered paekage from the New york office, never gave

me the courtesy of  a return cal l .

couldn' t  get  much informat ion f rom ,Josh Arbert , ,

the legislative correspondent who had been my contact

person. And f inal ly,  r  deeided to make a personal  t r ip

from New York, to drive down from New york

mai l  i s

i t  takes

oh,  th is  i s  the  age o f  a r I  those tox ics  seares ,

impossible.  r f  you send anything to congress,

weeks and weeks and months to arrive.

And I had been told that by ,Iosh Albert .

been told that by everyone . you can send faxes,

send e-mai ls,  but  i f  you're gonna send anything

regrular mai l  r  |ou can forget i t .  r t  's  not  gonna

for weeks and weeks and weeks.

So I drove down from New york on May sth. By

then f  had oh, oh. The, there,  s a May 2nd let ter  to

Josh Albert ,  is  that  in evidence? r  th ink he

THE COURT: What's the exhibit number?

MS . SASSOWER: Exhibit number.

MR. GOLDSTONE: Thir ty_eight?

M S .  S A S S O W E R : :  y e s ,  y € s ,  y € s ,  3 9 ,  i s  t h a t  i n

evidence? f  quest ioned him about that  let ter  whether he

r had

you ean

by

arrive
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had rece ived i t .

THE COURT: counsel approach the bench. Bring

38 w i th  you.

(Bench Conference)
' 

MS. SASSOWER: Do you have it? Do you have it?

THE COURT: Step around. The question to me is

whether or not this specific exhibit has been introd.uced

into evidenee. you can,t  guest ion on

r have no recorrect ion that exhibi t ,  that  the

exhibi t  that ' �s  now ident i f ied.  as 3g has been admit ted

into evidence. Have you seen this?

MR. MEIIDELSOHN: The only defense exhibic

that 's actual ly in "evidenee is Defense Exhibi t  Number 2

and perhaps part  of  Defense Exhibi t  7.

THE COURT: Excuse me?

MR . MEIilDELsoHN: And perhaps part of Def ense

Exhibi t  7 -  we do not ber ieve that Defense exhibi t  38 is

in  ev idence.

MS. SASSOWER: I  know

THE COURT: r  haven' � t  asked you yet, .  Look at

the evidenee, look at  i t .  what is th is document being

offered for? That is t,o sdy, when you speak to the jury

concerning t .h is exhibi t ,  what exact ly is i t  that  you

want to te l l  them?

MS. SASSOWER: That r  lef t  repeated messaqes

1238 64s
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for  Leecia Eve, that  we had a meet ing tentat ively

s c h e d u r e d  f o r  1 : 0 0  p . m .  r  w e n t  t o  t h a t  o f f i c e .  r  r e f t

mater ia ls  in  tha t  o f f i ce .

MR . MENDELSoIIN: your Honor, again, w€ have no

object ion to the defendant test i fy ing about al l  these

f  ac ts .  But  th is  l_e t te r

THE eouRT: Essent ia l ly  that  is  cumurat iwe,

correct?

MR. MENDELSOHN: yes, your Honor.

THE corrRT: very wel I .  r 'm going to actuar ly

a I1ow th is

MS. SASSOWER: Thank you.

THE COURT - int,o, into evidenee . It hasn I t

b e e n  a d m i t t e d  y e t .  r ' 1 1 ,  r ' 1 r  a l l o w  h e r  t o  o f f e r  i t .

You can s ta te  your  ob jec t ion .  we l ] ,  yourve  a l ready

s t a t e d  y o u r  o b j e e t i o n .  I , 1 1  h a v e  3 8 .

MS. SASSOWER: Thank you.

(Open Court)

THE COURT:  p roceed,  Ms.  Sassower .

MS .  SASSOWER: Okay.

THE couRT: Be mindful  of  the t ime please.

Ms- SASSowER: obviousry,  r  wanted to maximize

my t r ip  to  wash ing t .on .  r  d idn ' t  want  to  jus t  be  a

eour ier  of  documents,  and r  arranged. a meet ing wi th

Leecia Eve through Josh Albert .
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r t  was po,  i t  was supposed to  be for  r - :00 D.rn.

r was running Iat.e. when r arrived. maybe a half an

hour ,  40 -  4s minutes la ter ,  nobod.y  could see me.  r  sat .

perhaps 20 - 25 minutes, f io one came out, no one was

ava i l ab le .

And r  re f t  in  tha t  o f f i ce  Exh ib i t  15 ,  wh ich  is

my May 5th memo to chairman Hatch and Ranking Member

Leahy of  the Senat.e Judic iary Commit tee.

And senator c l inton was an indicated recipient

since of  course she is a home-state senator of  New york.

And r a]so went, and provided a copy for senator schumer.

And the memo in br ief  recounted our years,

t ,hat  is  the Center f  or  Judic ia l  Aecountabi l i ty ,  s years

of interact ion wi th the senate ,Judic iary commit tee and

the fact  that  we had over and again establ- ished that

the bar associat ion rat ings were f raudul_ent,  the

produc t  o f  insu f f i c ien t ,  d ishonest  inves t iga t ions

without any response from the senate ,Judiciary

commit tee. And this was highl ighted because by then

the bar associat ions had given approval  rat . ings to

, fudge Wesley.

And so what was being ident i f ied is that

the evidence that was being prof fered as to

Judge wes ley 's  un f  i tness  a l -so  exposed tha t  the  bar

assoc ia t ions  had no t  done the i r  iob .
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And the evidence, but not just  the,

direct  evidence, was transmit ted to the senate

commi t tee .  r t  cons is ted  o f  those f i ve  boxes .

1241

the most,

'Judiciary

THE couRT: I-ret the record ref lect that Ms .

sassower is pointing to several- document boxes that are

stacked on the defense tabre.  Appear to be f ive boxes.

MS. SASSOWER: And

THE COURT:  p lease s i t  down,  Ms.  Sassower .

Ms- SASSowER: And a,  what is cal led a redweld

forder ,  i t ' s  one o f  those brown long fo lders  w i th  a

f l a p .  Y e a h .  A l I  r i g h t .  N o ,  d o n , t  d o  t h a t .

THE COURT: Very wel l_.  p lease proceed.

Ms- SASSowER: okay. Now you shourd know that

those decorated boxes were not deeorated for the senate

'Judic iary commit t .ee.  That,  those are the or ig inal  boxes

with the or ig inal  f i le that  had been before Judge wesley

at the New York court of Appeals when he did what he

d i d .

THE COURT: Move i t  a long, Ms. Sassower.

MS. SASSowER: okay. After the New york court

of  Appeals disposed of  the matter as i t  d id and the bar

associat ions were doing their  evaluat ions,  r  provided

them wi t .h  t .hose boxes ,  those ev i ,  ev idence- f i l1ed  boxes .

And a f te r  t .hey  had comple ted  the i r  ra t ings ,  I

p icked up those boxes from the bar associat ion and

648
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brought them to Senate Judiciary Committee.

okay. Moving on. Nobody car-red. me from the

senate Judiciary committee. Nobody said. we have some

questions. we don' t  understand what you're saying. we

don't  understand your al legations .  we donr t  understand

where the evidence is.

Nobody contacted me.

And from May Sth , f caIled the

Commi t tee .

I was never interviewed.

Senate Judiciary

p . m. , orr Friday, May 9th at

I 2 L h  a t  2 : 0 2  p . m . ,  l e a v i n g

THE COITRT: What are you referring Eo, Ms.

Sassower?

MS.  sAssowER:  r rm sor ry ,  r rm now look ing  a t  my

May 19th memorandum.

THE COURT: What is the exhibit number?

MS. SASSOWER: Exhibi t  Number 4,  my May 19th

memorandum to chairman Hatch and ranking member Leahy.

Again,  r  had deposi ted those boxes in substant iat ion of

a written statement on May 5th and there had been no

response from anyone.

And f  had ca l led in  the in tervening days.

h a d  c a l l e d  o n  T u e s d " y ,  M a y  6 t h  a t  2 : 0 5  p . m . ,  o r r

Thursday, May Bth at  1-1_:25

2 :05  p  .  m.  ,  on  Monday,  May

vo ice  mai l  messages,  a1 I  unre turned.

F ina l l y ,  on  May j -3 th  ,  I ,  f  ca1 led  aga in  and
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said if r did not hear back from someone, r woul_d be

taking i t  up wi th a super ior .  These were messages lef t

for  the nominat ions c lerk.

The nominaEions clerk caI led me back at  the end

of the day. And what he claimed was that revi.ewing

counsel had what he claimed was that the committee, s

counser had reviewed the mater ia l  but  d idn' t  und.erstand

my aeeusat,ions and which documents would substantiate

them.

And my response to that is that was impossible.

That the accusations and the substantiating d.ocuments

were part icular ized in my overview stat .ement.

And r said eounsel wouLd have to be brain dead,

would have to be brain dead not to und.erstand what that

overview statement said and which were the

substant iat  ing documents .

And r asked to speak to the supposed reviewing

counsel .  r  wanted the name of the reviewing eounsel .

No, the nominat ions c lerk would not give me the

name of the reviewing counsel r gdve me no reason for why

he wourd not give me the name of the reviewing counser.

But he did' agree to pass on my request to speak to the

revl-ewt_ng counsel_

Moving on. And this wi l r  be in evidence and

you can read exactly what happened at that t ime. Two

1243 6 s 0
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days rater, w€ are now that conversation with the

clerk was May r-3th.  Two days later,  we, re at  May r .sth.

And now the clerk told me that he had been tord

by reviewing eounsel that r was ..a disgruntled l it igant,,

who saw conspiracies and. corruption everyalhere.

And my response to him was no compet,ent

uneonf l ic ted counsel  could so concrude. And r  again

asked for the name of the eounsel, and the clerk wourd

not give me the supposed reviewing eounsel, s name.

The clerk did not, see fit to tell me what he

already knew, which is that. the hearing had been

scheduled, on the eonfirmation, had. been scheduled for

the fol lowing week. He didn' t  te l l  me that but he

a l ready  knew i t .

THE COURT: Very well

MS.  SASSOWER: f

THE couRT: An appropriate point for us to have

a bench conference. Counsel approaeh.

(Bench Conference)

THE .OURT: Very well.  This has been now

proceeding for about 59 minutes

much too t i ,  too much t ime has

And r appreciate the fact that the Government

not interposed object ions when i t  coul_d wel l  have

r haven' t  str icken matters f rom the record when r

now. And qui te f rankly,

been consumed already.

has

and

1244 5 5 1



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

1 0

1 1

t 2

1_3

t 4

1 5

1 5

l 7

L 8

l -9

2 0

2 L

2 2

2 3

2 4

could wel l  have.

We,re now going to do the fol lowing: ei ther

yourre going to give your tape analysis or youlre going

to eonelude.

MS. SASSOWER: Okay

THE COURT: And I will give you

MS.  SASSOWER:  A1I  r igh t ,  f i ve  minu tes .

, THE COURT: Very wel1 .

(Open Court )

Ms - SASSoWER: The pertinent documents of May

19th and May 22nd recite what was going on at the senate

,Judiciary CommitEee. And as f okay.

Now, as I said in my opening, what is set

forth in the May 22nd d.ocument is what r was tord on May

l-9th and May 20th,  the events of  the pr ior  two d.ays.

Between those, r  had a phone conference with

Leecia Eve and .rosh Albert on May 20th. rt was

approximately 40 minutes in length.

And not only did r  re lay to Ms. Eve that there

had been no invest igat ion by the senate Judic iary

commit tee of  the,  of  what had been presented in

opposition to ,Judge wesley, that r had not gotten any

cal- I  f rom reviewing counsel ,  d idn' t  even know the

ident i ty of  so-cal led reviewing counsel_.  But.

THE COURT: Ms. Sassower,  analysis of  the
2 5
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videotape?

MS.  SASSOWER:  i t ,  i t  we l l ,  wa i t .  Can I

THE COITRT: To whom are you

Analysis of the videotape or we wil l

t .es t imony,  Ms.  Sassower .

S i n c e  I  d o n ' t

technological  experL.s,

tape over again.  Okay.

speaking?

eonclude your

have any high-powered

I did an analysis watching the

Ms. SASSowER: Al l  r ight .  we wi l l  move forward

to the videotape. Know that everything that r wour-d

test i fy to is set  for th in these doeuments of  May 19th,

May 22nd and then the shocking correspondence of May

2 lsE.

'  Now retrs look at  the v ideo. Because what did

you see? The prosecution showed. you the video. rt

doesn' t  speak for i t ,sel f  .  what did you see? Do you

want to use your v ideo? yes. Okay.

Before  we see i t ,  because i t ' s  too  you know,

in those high-powered. trials, |ou always have the

technical- analysts who have enhanced. the tape, right,

who slow the tape, who, so t.hat you can hear but you

ean' t  real ly hear c learIy.  And so that you see the

sequence.

(ThereupoD, the tape hras played.)

1?46 5 5 3
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MS . SASSOWER : Wait , 'o, rro, rro, please stop .

Let i t  okay. we wilr see it but f irst ret me terl
you what you wi l l  see.

To begin wi th,  the v ideotape shows that the so-

caIled disruption did not oceur during a ,Jud.iciary

committee hearing but upon its being adjourned.

only af ter  presiding chairman chambl iss """"" i ,

t 'here are no further questions or participation from

anyone on the committee, we wil l stand adjourned.. onry

after he says that did r commence to speak, and then it

was only for  a total  of  e ight  seconds.

Now as to a gavel? He strikes the gaver once

and the gavel  is  not struck to quel l  any distract ion.

Rather, chairman chambriss struck the gavel to symbolize

the cl-ose of the hearing while saying thank you very

mueh.

One str ike,  noE (demonstrat ing) as i f  he,  s

cal l ing disturbance, but (demonstrat ing) one str ike as

he's saying thank you very much because he has just ,  said.

that  the hear ing wi l I "" t " r rd adjournea. Okay

Now the video also makes plain that  r  began

speaking as chairman chambriss was saying'th-rrk you very
\r

much. okay. Now it is because our words are

simultaneous, wi th mine coming from the back of  the room

that my in i t ia l  words are not audible f rom the tape.
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THE COURT: -_the evidence.

Ms. SASSowER: okay. Now r wi l r  te l r  you what

r  said because r  d idn' t  want to s l ip up and because r

had been unlawful ly threatened.

TIIE COURT: Analysis of the tape?

MS. SASSOWER: I  Do, f  had wri t ten

what  f  sa id .

precisel-y

THE COURT: Si t  down, Ms. Sassower.

MS.  SASSOWER:  Oh, .  And th is  i s  what  I

Can I say, can I say what the

THE COURT: The tape is

MS. SASSOWER: Okay.

transeript

Mr- chairman, there's ei t izen opposi t ion to ,Judge

based on his documented. corruption as a New york

of Appeals judge. May I  test i fy?

Now, okay. From the video,

carefully, you ean hear the words 
tfuu

t  l '

right .

shows?

s a i d :

Wesley

Court

i f  you  l i s ten
lr

I  tes t i f y?  A I I

Now the video makes plain that r  had f inished

my concluding words, 
o* 

o r testirf uy the time chairman- /

chambliss respond "d.r'r wil l issue a warning that we wilr
t l

have order.

I  had already stopped speaking, i t  was eight

seeond.s.  r  had. arready f in ished. rndeed, ds refr-ect ,ed

by the video, his immediately fo l lowing words, . .The
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committee wi l l  stand in recess unt, i l  the pol iee ean

restore order. Everyone remain seatea) as i f  there were

some ongoing continued disturbance or ruckus were whol ly

super f luous ls ince af t ,er  ask ing"*uu r  test i fy l '  r  was

complete ly  s i lent

Now on t ,he v ideo, the heads of  Off icer

Jennings and sergeant Bignott . i  are not seen passing the

video eamera unt i l  th is fur ther whor- ly unnecessary

s ta tement ,  "un t i l  the  po l i ce  ean res tore  order . , ,  They

then passed from lef t  to r ight ,

r t  must be noted that the v ideo which is

focused on chairman chambriss as he cl_oses the hear ing

shows no surprise on his face 
'as 

r begin to speak from

the back of  the room.

Rather,  i t  shows him re,  reaching for his

reading glasses and then presumabry for  the,  for  t .he

paper f rom which, af ter  r  am taken out of  the hear ing

room, he seems to read

THE COURT: Very well .  We wil_L have the

play ing of  the t .ape.

M S .  S A S S O W E R :  I , m  n o t  f i n i s h e d ,  f , m  n o t

f i n i s h e d .

THE COURT: you have consumed enough time

M S .  S A S S O W E R :  I ' m  n o t

THE COURT:  - -  w i th  th is  exp lanat ion .
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MS .  SASSOWER:  I 'm no t  f in ished.  f  have

THE COURT:  WeI l ,  I ,  m sor ry ,  Ms.  Sassower ,

tha t  i s ,  tha t  i s  un forLunate .  p lay  the  tape p lease.

(Thereupof l ,  the v ideotape was played.)

MS.  SASSOWER:  fnso far

THE COURT: Turn, turn the tape off. Very

welI .  Ladies and gentremen, we, re going to take our

morn ing  recess .  we ' r -1  resume in  1 -o  minu tes ,  15  minu t .es .

.  (Thereupon, the jury returned. to the

j uryroom. )

THE COURT : Very weL L , step d.own .

MS.  SASSOWER:  Excuse i lo ,  I ,d .  l i ke  to  p lace

ob jec t ions  on  the  record  p lease.

THE couRT: you can step over and do that from

here not the wi tness stand.

MS.  SASSOWER:  Of  course

THE COURT: Al l  r ight .

MS. SASSOWER: What we might have to

THE COURT: We are t.hrough with the videotape.

very  we l l - .  succ inc t ly  s t .a te  your  ob jec t ion  on  the

reeord so that we can proceed. we,re no..  gonna consume

a lo t  o f  t ime w i th  th is .  Go ahead.

Ms. SASSo*ER: The this that  your Honor is

re fe r r ing  to  i s  my de fense.

THE COURT: Riqht .2 5

1250
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present,

provided

MS. SASSOWER: And r was on the stand for
approximately one hour. your Honor did not indicate at
the outset any t ime restr ict ion

I believed f would have adequate opportunity to
the most relevant particulars which, having

the necessary background., I was then reeiting.

And Your Honor has completely truncated and
bl0cked me from reciting the outrageous events
pertaining to the cal l  that  r  reeeived. f rom capi to l
po l i ce  a t  the  ins tance o f  senator  c l in ton ,  s  o f f i ce ,

which set in motion a chain of events that included.

the E et up by the senate ,Judiciary committee to have
arrested. when there wag no basis whatsoever for such
arrest ,  ?s they knew.

THE COURT: Very wel l .  f  ,  f  wi l_ l

MS. SASSOWER: you interrupted. as

describing Chairman

t h e ,

me

an

address

f was

THE COURT: And f, m

M S .  S A S S O W E R : ChambL iss '  s

THE COURT: And frm interrupt ing you now. Be
si ]ent ,  s i t  down whi le r  add.ress th is issue. The record
wi l - r  refr-ect  the representat ions that were made pr ior  to
the test imony being rendered as to the est imate of  t ime.

The record wi l l  a lso refr-ect  that  in an ef for t
to move this matter alonq, nei ther the court  nor,  to
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their credit, the Government, s eounsel interposed

object ions which woul. ,  whi le warrant i rg,  whi le

warranting grant, nevertheless refused to do so to move
the matter along.

rnstead, undue time was eonsumed in, as r had
previously directed the defense, in ef for ts to get
before the jury documents which were c lear ly

inadmissibre, e]-earry referred to by Ms. sassower in a
way to indicate to the jury that there were materials
that she submitted to the senate .Tudiciary committee, to
senator schuman, schumer and to senator clinton.

That point was made several times. The content
of the documents were not and wirl not be disclosed
except as previously addressed. during t,he preliminary

mat ters  par t  o f  today 's  proceed^ ings.

Therefore,  th is court  is  sat isf ied that the
jury has seen the videotape several  t imes and has

received, by way of  evidence that was not objected to
and not str icken by t ,he Court ,  the defendant,s analysis
sueh as  i t  was .

MS ' SASSOWER: The def end.ant has not, has not
concLuded the analysis.

THE COURT : you ,ve mad.e that point and f ,m

order ing that you have in fact  concr_uded your analysis.

MS. SASSOWER: you wi l l  not  permit  me?
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THE COURT: I wil1 not permit any further

d iscuss ion of  th is  v ideotape.

MS' SASSOWER: of  what that  tape shows in fact?

THE COURT: The tape speaks for i tsel f .

MS. SASSOWER: No, i t  doesn,t  speak for
i t s e l f .

THE COURT: Very wel l_.  Si t  down, Ms. Sassower.
The, the next matter then is,  Ms. Sassower,  g iven that
there wil l be no further diseuesion of the tape and.
given that there wirr be no further testimony from the
witness stand, does the d.efense rest?

Ms. sASsowER: No, the d.efense does not rest .

THE COURT: Very well.

MS. SASSOWER: The defense

THE COURT: what is the ad.ditional evidence

that you wi l l  of fer? rs there another wi tness?

MS. SASSOWER: The defense wiI I

t e s t i f y

THE COURT: fs Ehere

MS. SASSOWER: as to Of f  icer ,Jennings,

of f icer,  the plaeement of  of f ieer Jennings and sergeant
B i g n o t t i .

THE COURT:  I f  tha t ,s  your  p ro f fe r ,  i t  i s
irrelevant

MS . SASSOWER: And
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THE COURT: --  and i t  wi l l  not  be admit ted into

ev idence.

MS . SASSOWER: And the fact that Sergeant
Bignott i  a l0ne arrested me, of f icer ,Jennings had nothing
to  do  w i th  i t .  H is  tes t imony is  he  to ld  me to  s i t  down.
He is not the arrest ing of f icer,  i t  was Sergeant
B i g n o t t i .

THE COURT: Very weIl. you

MS. SASSOWER: Against whom f had fi led a
pol ice misconduct complaint .

THE COURT: The police misconduct

M S .  S A S S O W E R :  i n  1 9 9 6 .

THE COURT: The police misconduct complaint. is
not in this case. r have d.irected you not to even

E h i s  r  - -

MS.  SASSOWER:  I t , s  p roper ly ,  i t , s  p roper ly  in

THE COURT: Not

MS.  SASSOWER:  in  th is  ease.

THE COURT: f t  is  not  in th is case.

MS. SASSOWER: f t ,  s proper ly in your Honor
THE COURT: Ms . Sassower,

MS . SASSOWER: has exeluded

THE COIIRT: Ms .  Sassower,

MS. SASSOWER: I t , ,  s rel_evant to evidence.

THE COTIRT: Ms. Sassower,  s i t  down now. Very

1254
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we1I.  r  am order ing that based upon the prof fer  that

r rve  heard  as  to  t ,he  add i t iona l  in fo rmat ion  tha t  Ms.

Sassower seeks to get before the jury in the way of

ev idence,  tha t  ev idence is  no t  admiss ib le .

r t  has previously been rur-ed upon, part icularry

this issue of a misconduct complaint against an off icer
inwolved in the arrest . .

And given the extent of  the prof fer ,  the Court

i s  o rder ing  tha t  the  de fense case be  c losed a t  th is

po in t .  The de fense res ts .  There fore  Ms.

MS. SASSOWER: you have rested. for  me.

THE COURT: I have

MS.  SASSOWER:  The Defense does  no t  resE,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: The record is c lear.  But let  ine

tel I  you this.  when we resume what we wi l r  be doing is

having closing argument and the jury wirr  receive the

c a s e .

MS' SASSOWER: wel l  they have not  reeeived the,

the

s t a n d .

THE COURT: Then, then

MS. SASSOWER: the per t inent  ev id.ence

THE COURT:  Then  tha t , s

MS. SASSOWER: which comes f rom the wi tness

1255 6 6 2
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THE COURT: you donrt  understand. rrm not

entertaining any further discussion on the issue. you

have made your obj ection f or the record. rt '  s d.one.

The jury is now going to hear closing argument, and

receive instruct ion f rom me. s i t  p lease. Now

MS.  SASSOWER:  Excuse me.  Wi I I  the ,  w i l l

the

version

THE COURT: you had ample opportunity

MS. SASSOWER: Excuse me .

THE COURT: you had ample opportunity t,o put, on

evidenee in th is case.

MS. SASSOWER: WiI I  the

THE COttRT: There wil1 be no further

MS.  SASSOWER:  Wi f l

THE eOItRT: -- evidence

MS. SASSOWER: WiI l  they be told

THE COIIRT: - - f rom the d.ef ense.

MS. SASSOWER: that, t,here was no conviction

for disorder ly conduct?

THE COURT: Absolutely 'not  
.  Si t ,  s i t  down.

MS. SASSOWER: Absolutely nor .

THE COURT: Si t  down.

MS. LfU: your Honor,  may we approach?

THE COURT: Come up.

1256
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(Bench Conference)

THE COURT: Stat,e

MR. MEIilDELSOHN: Two issues. One, the

Government is not opposed to the defendant finishing up
her reci tat ion of  the facts by way of  reading her,
Her ,

MS .  SASSOWER: Analysis.

MR. MEIIDELSOHN: her analysis. Two, the
Government does have eross-examination of the defendant

that, depending on how the defendant answer* those

quest ions ,  we don ' t  expec t  i t  to  take  more  than L0  _  15

minutes .

THE COITRT: AII  r ight  .  Ms. Sassower.

MS . SASSOWER: Oh, the

THE COftRT: Lower your voice when you speak.

MS. SASSOWER: The defense welcomes

THE COURT: Lower your voice :

MS.  SASSOWER:  eross_examinat ion .

THE COURT: Get a marshal .

MS. SASSOWER: The d.efense welcomes cross-

examinat ion,  your Honor.

THE COURT: very wel'. And the faet that your

being cross-examined. doesn,t  mean that you,re gonna give
speeches from the witness stand. Do you un, do you

understand that?
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MS. SASSOWER: r  wi l l  answer as the q 'est ion

warrants,  your Honor.

THE eOItRT: Very weI1.

MR. MENDELSOHN: your Honor, all of my
questions warrant a yes or no answer.

THE COURT: Absolutely.

MS . LIU: your Honor, one more t,hing .

THE COURT: yes .

MS. LIU: you had ment ioned that werre

into c l0sing arguments.  rs i t  your intent ion t ,o

elose before you instruct  the jury?

THE eOItRT: No. As a matter of fact, i ly

intent ion is once the eross-examinat ion is complete,

then we wi l l  essent ia l ly  have the r

have to give them a break again while

diseussion of  t ,he jury instruct ions.

We, I I  b r ing  them back  in .  We, I l  1ock  the

door.  r ' r -1 give them the instruct ions.  And of  eourse,

as you know, the purpose for locking the door is so that
they aren' t  d isturbed dur ing the instruct ion per iod.

f don, t mind who, s present for the

instruct ions,  but they have to wai t  unt i l  the

instruct ions are completely given before they reave. so
we '11  ins t ruc t  them.

You wi l l  then do your c losings and that wi l l  be

going

have us

think f 'm gonna

I entertain br ief
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the last thing that they have. Government first,

defense, br ief rebuttal  and then we,re done.

Right now while hre, re having this bench

conferenee' it wourd be good for me to know how long do
you think your closings are gonna take.

MS. LfU: your Honor,  the Government,s f i rst
c l0sing is going to take about L2 to 15 minutes.

THE eOItRT: Very well .

MS'  L ru :  And.  a t  the  c l0se  o f  the  de fendant ,s

case, rebuttar- wil l not take l0nger than about five to g

minutes .

TIIE .OURT: Very well. So you, re talking about

a tot ,a1 of  20 minutes?

MS.  L IU:  That ' s  about  r igh t ,  your  Honor .

We '11  endeavor  to  keep i t  b r ie f

THE COURT: Right.  Very wel-L.  Defense, what d.o
you est imate your c losing statement to be?

MS. SASSOWER: I t  wi l l  have to be more

extensive s ince f  was precluded from test i fy ing.

THE COURT : No, |ou f ai 1 to und.erstand . The
closing statement

MS.  SASSOWER:  yes .

THE COURT: _ _ is a commentary on the evid.enee.

MS.  SASSOWER:  yes ,  f  w i l l  be  g iv ing  a

commentary.
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THE .OURT: Listen. What you didn,t  say f rom
the stand, what didn,t  geL in therer 1rou don,t  get  a
second chance to do it when you, re giving closing

s ta tements .

MS. SASSOWER: That 's why r  should be permit ted

to  concLude my fac tua l  tes t imony.  That ,s  why f ,m

THE COURT: How many, how many additionaL
points in your analysis do you have? you see, the
Government,  whi le they may not object ,  they aren,t

charged with the ef f ic ient  operat ion of  th is eourtroom.

That, s me. Give me the response to my questi_on, how

many addi t ional  points?

MS. SASSOWER: I think f have perhaps five

minutes,  r lo more.

THE COIIRT: No, that was what you stated.

ear l ier .  f  want to know the number of  points.

MS. SASSOWER: Wel l  r  _ _

THE COURT: r  don' t  want,  r  don,t  care to know
an es t imate  o f  t ime.

MS. SASSOWER: May f  take my statement and look
a t  i t ?

THE COURT: Sure

( P a u s e )

M S .  S A S S O W E R :  I t , s  a  s h a m .

THE COURT:  Ms.  Sassower ,  Ms.  Sassower .
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Ms.  SASSoWER:  Yes .

'  THE COURT: rrm not going to l is ten to any
other eomments l ike that .  Don,t  ever say anything, I
donrt  care what you say out of  my presence, but d.on' t
ever make that kind of comment in my presence again.

MS . SASSOWER: I was saying it to my attorney,
my 1ega1 adviser.

THE COITRT: Ms . Sassower.

MS- SASSOWER: The reeord speaks for i tsel f ,

Your Honor.

four

THE COURT: How

MS. SASSOWER: I

THE COURT: Very

point ,s br ief ly

MS . SASSOWER:

THE eOItRT: - -

MS. SASSOWER:

easy  to  do  tha t .

many additional

have one, two,

weII .  And you

po in ts?

four

wi l l  make those

Y e s .

and succ inc t ly .

T h e y , r e ,  t h e y , r e  w r i t t e n  n o t e s .

I t ' s

MR. MENDELSOHN: One further question.

THE COTIRT: yes

MR. METi lDELSOHN: Dur ing the eross-examinat ion,

may the Government have permission to enter the well of
the courtroom when asking quest ions? or would the court
prefer i f  f  stay back by the counsel_,  s table?

THE COURT: For what reason would you enter the
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well except to approach her with the doeuments? r

cannot imagine a reason.

MR. MENDELSoITN: The court wour-d pref er if r
stay back.

THE COURT: Absolutely, there at the table or
the podium.

MR. MEIIDELSOHN: Thank you .

(Open Court )

THE COttRT : AI1 right . Given the

d iscuss ion  a t  the  bench conference,  r '11  a l low Ms.

sassower to make four point,s, four additionar points

pertaining to the videotape and. then we wil l move

immediately into the Government r s eross-examination

Very  we l l .

Oh, I ,m sorry.  How much t ime do you need?

okay. we're gonna recess for 10 minutes whire the court

reporter,  who's been here the ent i re break per iod,  has

a,  has  a  b reak .

THE CLERK: The court ,  wirr-  stand in br ief  recess

unt i l  return of  court .

( T h e r e u p o n ,  t h e  C o u r t  r e e e s s e d  a t  1 1 : 5 g  p . m . )

(Thereupof l ,  the court  reeonvened. at  12:10 pM )

THE CLERK: Uni ted States versus Elena

Sassower ,  case number  M4j - l_3-03 .

THE COURT: Very we11. Counsel .
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MS ' Lru: Good morning, your Honor, i lessie Liu

f .or  the Uni ted. States.

!rR. MEIIDELSOIIN: Aaron Mende]-sohn for the

un i ted  Sta tes .

MS. SASSOWER: Elena Sassower,  defendant pro
s e .

MR . GOLDSTONE : Mark Goldstone, at,torney

adv iser .

THE conRT: very well. we wil l resume with
the ,  f ina l  four  po in ts  o f  the  de fense,

MR. MENDELSOHN: YOUr HONOT, IhC GOVCTNMCNT

does have a prel iminary issue before cross-examinat ion

begins. Should we ad.dress that now

THE COURT: yes.

MR. MENDELSOHN: or _ _may we approach?

THE COURT: yes .

(Bench conference)

MR. MENDELSOHN: your Honor, Ms. Sassower

stated in her direct  test imony that,  .Judge wesrey had a
problem with another member of the center for ,Judicial

Accountabi l i ty .

r  would l ike permission to inquire about that
other member, and r assume that that other member is her
mother.

M S .  S A S S O W E R :  I t ' s  n o t .

1263 5 7 0
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f  rm not

iesue .

against

further

THE COURT: We11, I don,t mueh eare who

going to al low any further explorat ion of

fn my view, the nature of  the al legaEions

this judge is completely i r re levant.

i t  was .

that

And r permitted testimony a10ng that l ine to
faci l i tate the narrat ive.  But as to speci f ic  inquiry as
to who Judge wesley may have interacted with the center
for , fudic ia l  Accountabi l i ty ,  r  donrt  see the rerevance
to the elements or the defense in th is ease.

MR. MENDELSOHN: Thank you.

THE COURT: So f 'm not going to al low any

explorat ion of  that  area.

MR . MENDELSOIIN: your Honor, f have one quick
quest ion .

THE COURT: yes

MR. MENDELSOIIN: Ms. Sassower,  as the
defendanE pro s€,  has a r ight  to object ,  object ion to
government quest ion.  so the methodol0gy of  that  'm
assuming is for  her to stand. up on the witness stand and
ra ise  an  ob jec t ion .  Is  tha t  cor rec t?

THE COURT: No, she,s not gonna stand up and
an ob j  ec t ion .  She,  11  s imp ly  tu rn  to  me .  She,  l_ l
the object ion and she'r-r-  g ive me a br ief  statement
bas is  and f  w i I I  ru le  f rom here .

MR. MENDELSOHN: Thank you, your Honor.

r a i s e

s t a t e

of the
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THE COURT: you, re weleome.

MS. sASSowER: The criminar- defendant does not

contemplate obj ect ing because t,he cr iminal def endant is
happy to answer every and alr questions. And moreover,

for the record, the, the member of the center to whom r
re ferred which

THE COURT: fs  a non- issue and the Cour t

doesn' t  want to share

MS. SASSOWER: is Robert  Schu1z

THE COURT: Ms .  Sassower,

MS. SASSOWER: who brought the case

against  the New york State legis lature

THE COURT: Get the marshal_ up here.

(Open Cour t )

(Thereupon the jury returned to the courtroom

a t  2 : 2 0  p . m . )

THE COURT: Ms.  Sassower,  p lease proceed.

Ms. sAssowER: concr-uding my analysis with some
commentary.  Before f  am taken out,  the v ideo has an

e igh t -second pause.  r t ' s  the  per iod  dur ing  wh ich

sergeant Bignott i  and sergeant,  Bignott i  arone demanded

that f  sLep out of  the hear ing room.

Although she did not t .hen state that  r  wour_d. be

arrested' the very d"emand. that r r_eave the hearing room

was a s igni f icant enough departure f rom the preced.ent

1265 6 7 2
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that had been set at the i lune 25th 1996 senate Judiciarv
hear ing, ds to lead me to bel ieve, based upon

that f had received by Detective Zimmerman,

in my May 21st fax that  wi l l  be before you in
evidence, that  f  might be arrested.

Because my stated posi t ion to Deteet ive
Zimmerman, as ref lected by that fax,  was that i t  was for
t 'he presiding ehairman to decide whether a respectful
request to test i fy should be punished by arrest ,  i t  was
for that reason that r then asked chairman chambr is; qre
you direct ing that r  be arrested? Are you direct ing

that f  be arrested? 
"

Now Chairman Chambliss, the video shows, d.id
not respond to t,hat straightforward question much as he
did not:espond to my straight,forward. guestion l, f lpV t
t e s t  i t y {

fnstead, the video shows that he answers, I am
direct ing that the pol ice restore ord.er.  Sergeant
Bignottsi then again demanded me to step out of the
hearing room, prompt,ing me to again ask chairman, , A

chamblissr6fue you direct ing that r  be arrestedi 
u/

The transcript, the video then shows what

Commit tee

t,he threat

re f lecEed

happens

Sergeant

my head

in a nine-second pause, sequence. The head. of
B ignot t i  passes  f rom r igh t  to  le f t ,  fo r rowed by

and the head of of f icer .Tennings. The sound of
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a door is then heard

Although the video does not zoom on chairman
chamblissr face, the tempo of his immediatery fol lowing
words give the impression that he is reading from a
prepared text,.

My l_ast observation. As my voluminous

correspondence with the senate .Tudiciary committee
re f lec ts ,  the  le t te rs  submi t ted  by  ou ts ide  w i tnesses ,  no
matter how ser ious and substanLial ,  are s imply ignored
by the committee whose lead.ership refuses to respond to
wr i t ten  reques ts  to  tes t i f y

fndeed, from the prepared. statement read by
senator chambl iss,  i t  appears that  the commit teers

leadership set ,  me up to be arresled.

were i t  otherwise, senator chambl iss would have
been provided with a statement to be read. before r  rose
to request to test i  fy _-

G
-Ffstatement which acknowledged that the

commit tee had received a wr i t ten request to test i fy
which was being denied because it was ..not our usuar_
procedure" and beeause such request did.  not  fa l r_,  far- l
wi th in an except ion thereto.

Rather than making an acknowled.grment in advance
of my r is ing,  that  there had been a request to test i fy,
which was known, which was being denied, he reserves i t

1267 6 7 4
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f or af t,er I had been taken ouE.

And when f was taken out, the arrest was made by
Sergeant Bignott i ,  not Of f  icer ,Jennings.

THE COURT: Very we11. Cross_examination.

MENDELSOIIN: Thank you, your Honor .

CROSS -EXAIqNTNATTON

BY MR . MENDELSO}IN:

O Good a f te rnoon,  Ms.  Sassower .

A Good afternoon.

o Ms '  sassower,  r  want to d. i rect  your at tent ion
t o  J u n e  2 5 t h ,  L g g 6 .

A  p l e a s e .

O on that d"y, you traveled from New york t,o
W a s h i n g t o n  D . C . ,  i s n ' t  t h a t  r i g h t ?

A  r  d i d .

O you went up to the United States Capi to l ,

r ight?

A  r  d i d .

a And you went to,  speci f ical ly to the senate
Di rksen Bu i ld ing ,  i sn ' t  thaL r igh t

A yes ' r had gotten a car-r- that morning of the
hear ing and certainry specta 'ors are always wercome aL
hear ings .

o rsn' t  i t  t rue that you spoke in a r_oud voice to
the senate staf fers in Room 224 of  the senate Dirksen

1268 6 7 5



1 3

t 4

t_5

1 6

t 7

1 B

1 9

2 0

2 L

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

1 0

1 1

t 2

_ _ - - - - - - - - _ -
1269 676

Bui ld ing that day?

A No,  i t  i s  no t  t rue .

THE COURT: Very wel I .

THE DEFEIilDAI\IT: And I was, and

THE COURT: Exeuse me.

THE DEFENDATilT: I was not arrested.

THE COIIRT: Excuse me. The answer is no or
yes .  Next quest ion.

BY MR . MEIIDELSO}TN:

O fn fact ,  i -sn, t  i t  fa i r  to say that you were
yel l ing at  them?

A f  'm a professional  and f  d.on,t  engage in
unbecoming eonduct ever

a  D idn ' t  u .s .  cap i to l  po l iee  aL  some po in t  t rv  to
remove you from Room 224?

A They never tried to remove me from the senate
,Judic iary Commit tee of f ices.  We were, we, I  had

received the bar associat ion evaluat ion

O  M a r a m ,  a g a i n

A o f  the  nominee.

THE COURT: Exeuse me.

MS. SASSOWER: The business was boncl-uded.

THE COURT: Ms .  Sassower.

MS. SASSOWER: and we were walk ing out

THE COURT: Excuse me.
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THE DEFENDANT: __ into the halIway.

THE COURT: Ms. Sassower, exeuse me.
when r speak you cease until r ask you Eo resume.

MS. SASSOWER: f ,  m sorry, your Honor.
THE COURT: Next question.

BY MR. ME}TDELSOHN:

O You didn,t  want to leave that room, isnft  that
r ight?

A f had no reason to remain in that room. f had
gotten the information which chairman Hateh, s r_etter
indicated r  would.  receive at  the t ime of ,  of  the
hearing

o so  you le f t  Room 224 w i th  the  u .s .  cap i to l
po l i ce  w i l I ing ly

A AbsoLute ly .

O Then in the hal Iway, 1rou didn,t  shout at  them
a t  a l l ?

O you d idn ' t  use  pro fan i ty?

A f  donr t  use  pro fan i ty .

a you didn, t  speak in a loud voice at  ar_r_?
A r  requested. the return of  ident i f icat ion which

r f reely and wi l ' ingly gave to the of f icer and which he
refused to return.  And because of  my protests,  he did
not indicate any 1ega1 basi_s2 5

1270 6 7 7
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THE COURT: Excuse me, exeuse me. Answer the
question yes or no. euestion

BY MR . MENDELSO}TN:

O fn requesting the return of your d.ocuments, you
d idn ' t  speak  in  a  1oud vo ice  a t  a l l?

A r did not speak in a voice that would warrant
any kind of  arrest ,  r ro.

a when you say that, wil l you demonstrate how you
asked for the return of  your dr iver,s l icense?

A How is th is relevant? r  was not arrested for
reques t ing  to  tes t i f y  _

MR . MEIIDELSOHN: your Honor , _ _

MS. SASSOWER: at  the Senate ,Judic iary

Committee hearing

THE COURT: That test imony is str ieken. Ms.
Sassower,  answer the quest ion as requested.

MS. SASSOWER: The events have been

par t i cu la r ized  by  me in  a  po l iee

THE COITRT: Ms

MS. SASSOWER: misconduct complaint  against
Sergeant Bignott i

MR. MENDELSOHN: your Honor,  __

THE COURT: : Excuse

MS' sASSOWER: --and the ot .her of f icers involved,
as you know.2 5

127 1 6 7 8



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

1 0

t 1

t 2

l_3

L 4

1 5

1 6

t 7

i.8

1 9

2 0

2 T

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

1272 6 7 9

(Thereupotr, the jury returned Eo the juryroom at
1 2 2 2 4  p . m .  )

THE COTIRT : Very well , it , s now t2 z 24. The
court  has previously given instruct ions to th is wi tness
with regard to the manner in which questions wourd be
answered in this courtroom.

clear ly,  the response to the last  qu.est ion was
not only non-responsive but it was inappropriate, in
that the content of that testimony was deemed by this
court  to be so prejudic ia l  that  i t  should never be
placed in front of t,he jury

Nevertheless,  despi te th is preclusion and.

despi te the court  referr ing severar t imes to the fact
that  t 'he jury should never hear th is prejudic ia l

informat ion,  Ms. sassower chose instead to v iorate the
court 's  order and to make a stat ,ement as to the
informat ion that had previously been rur-ed precluded.

Therefore,  r ,m ord.er ing the marshal  at  th is
t ime to st .ep you back.

MS. SASSOWER: Would you take my, my handbag
and my belongings? The por ice misconduct

r ight  there,  Mr.  Mendelsohn, wi th al_l  the

THE COURT: Exeuse de,

the jury removed. And you will

comment by the def end.an! .

exeuse me. please have

disregard the last

complaint  is

part iculars of
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what took place with respeet to the

disorderly conduct.

THE COURT: A11 r ighE.

THE CLERK: The Court will
r ecess  , t i I  r e tu rn  o f  cou r t  a t  L :25 .

THE COURT: Very well.

(Bench Conference)

Counsel approach.

THE eouRT: Ar-1 right. r rhink it should be
evident to anybody who has ever practiced before me that
r did everything that r could to avoid the oeeurrence.

when she made it clear to me that she would Ery
and get before the jury the information concerning the
pol ice misconduct eompraint ,  that  evidence is so
p r e j u d i c i a l .

And my direct ives had been so expr ic i t  that
there was no other way to interpret her action buE as a
d i rec t ,  in ten t iona l ,  w i l r fu1 ,  knowing v io la t ion  o f  the
court  order.  And on that basis she was stepped back.

Mr.  Goldstone, i t  appears to me that you d.on,t
control  over Ms. Sassower.  you,re there as the
adv iser .

But an intermediate step that r  had considered

trumped-up charge of

stand at 1uncheon

have any

attorney

sometime ago was to have you step

Whether or not your being, whet.her

lead counsel would have prevented

in and proeeed.

or noL your being

the outburst  wi l l  just
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have to remain the subject of speculation hereon out.

But it was clear to me that the intermediate
step of ordering you to take over the case would have
been unavai l ing. r '1r hear your comment on that now.

MR- GOLDSTONE: r eoneur with the court that it
woul-d be unavai l ing.  There are s igni f icant di f ferences

r-n strategy approach that make it impossible for me to
s tep  in  a t  th is  t ime as  1ead counse l_ .

r l ve  g iven a  10 t  o f  thought ,  r rve  had a  10 t  o f
discussions and a lot  of  ref  lect ion on t ,hat .  And as r
indicated to the court several days dgo, it wouId be
impossible for  me to step in as read counser at  th is
point

perhaps after lunch we could resume

cross-examinat ion and, and proceed to c l0sing

without further d.isruption. That would be oy,

would be my reeommend.ation to the Court.

THE COURT: we' I ,  Mr.  Goldstone, r  th ink that
the record wir l  refr-ect  that  r  have accorded you a
eertain deference because of  your being a member of  the
Distr ict  of  columbia Bar,  And r  have sat here and

observed some rather d. isturbing behavior by your cr ient .

I have seen her push you away when you try to
give her advice- r 've heard her say th ings which in my
view could not have eome from you as advice to her.

wi th the

argument s

that
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And therefore, my inferenee has been that she
has disregarded, when she see f i t  to do so, your adviee.
r believe the only thing that r want to address

before r  get  to the issue of  what we, l l  do af ter  runch
i s  t h i s .

Mr '  Goldstone, your statement r ight  now that i t
would be impossible for you to take over, r respect your
deeis ion in that  regard.

The record wi l l  ref leet ,  ref lect  however that
ear l - ier  in th is case, f  bel ieve i t  was on Apr iJ-  15th,
when i t  was clear to me at  that  t ime Ms. sassower would
not fo l low my direct ives,  r  gave the defense the

opportuniLy to have you step in and it was declined at
tha t  po in t .

So my point here is that f understand your

comment with regard. to why you canrt take over now and r
respect thaE. what r  wi l r  state for  the record is that
the of fer  was extended ear l ier  in the case.

MR. GOLDSTONE: I fully concur and f

denied at  that  t ime, decl ined at  that  t ime. And for t ,he
reasons tha t  I  dec l ined,  those reasons  s t i l l  ex is t .

THE COURT: Very weI l ,  very wel1,  a l l  r ight .
Now with regard to after lunch, how much more of this do
you have?

MR . MENDELSOHN: f rm almost half way t,here .
2 5

1275 6 8 2
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THE COURT: All right. r think you should give
eonsidered thought, during the luncheon reeess as to how,
not how many more questions you believe you would be
entitled to, but how ma, how many more questions do you
need.

MR. MENDELSOHN: I understand, your Honor.
THE COTTRT: A11 right. Make that

de terminat ion ,  we,11  come back  a f te r  l_unch.  The,  we,11
have the conclusion of the examination.

Do we have copies of the jury instruetions that
r  intended to give here? you havenrt  made a eopy yet.
A11 r igh t , .  Because r r l r  en ter ta in  some br ie f  d iscuss ion
of the j ury i-nstructions to the extent that the

Government has submitted theirs.

I ,  ve never seen any from the defense.

burden w i l l  be  on  you,  Mr . ,  Mr .  Go lds tone,  to

object ion to the Government,s requested jury

ins t ruc t ions .

The

ra ise

I rm go ing  to  ins t ruc t

And f  'm a1so going to instruct

f  te l l  them up front what their

back into the juryroom.

them before you

them in an order

dut ies are when

argue.

so that

they go

Many of  the other i tems frve

my prel iminary instruct , ions to them.

wi th  the i r  du t ies  wh i le ,  when they , re

1276

already given in

So we, l_ l_  beg in

de l ibera t ing ,
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having a verdict form, picking a foreperson.

We, l l  ge t  a1 I  o f  tha t  ou t  o f  the  way f i rs t .
Elements,  reasonable doubt,  burden of  proofr  g€t  thaE
done and then everything else af ter  that .  Okay.

MR. GOLDSTONE: your Honor, for the record., f
donrt  have any signi f icant object ion to the proposed.
jury instructions. f have some minor commentary.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. GOLDSTONE: And then we of course have a
defense theory of  the case instruct , ion which we,re in
the  process  o f  f ina l i z lng .

THE COURT: AI1 r ight .  WeII ,  I  p lan ro

instruct  them and have cl0sings af ter ,  af ter  lunch

MR. GOLDSTONE: Understood.

THE COURT: AIl right

MS. LfU: And, your Honor,  s imply for  the
purposes of  schedul i rg,  is  i t  your intent ion to adjourn

early today

THE COURT:  I t  i s .

MS.  L fU:  
:_  

so  tha t  two ju rors  can

THE COURT: f t  is .

-  M S '  L r u :  - -  a t t e n d  t o  t h e i r  r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s ?

THE COURT: f t  is .  I  bel ieve that gui te
frankly,  By intent ion had been to d. ischarge t ,hem at 2:3o
and have them eome back tomorrow at the regular t. ime.

1277  _  6s4
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The question is going to be whether f get
everything done af ter  the luncheon reeess before 2:30.
That means addi t ional  eross_examinat ion.  f t  means me
charging them and then the closings.

What we might end up with is the final ize,
f inal  cross-examinat ion,  me eharging them, discharge for
the day and then they begin anew tomorrow. f ,11 hear
d iseuss ion  on  tha t .

woul-d

t h a t ,  s

MS.  L fU:  your  Honor ,  i f  a t  a l l  poss ib le ,  we
strongly prefer that  we f in ish elosings t ,oday, i f
p o s s i b l e  a t  a I I .

THE COLIRT: Wel l r  we can certainly t ry that .
But '  r '11 te l l  you we've already wasted a good. chunk of
the morning. They should already have this case. okay.
r t ' s  L 2 : 3 0 '  T h e r e ' s  [ o ,  t h e r e ' s  n o  r e a g o n  t h a t  t h a t
couldn' t have occu*ed.. so we, r-r- be back at r_ : 3 0 and
we ' l I  go  f rom there .

MS. LfU: Very weI l ,  your Honor

THE COURT: AL1 right, Ehank you.

( T h e r e u p o r ,  t h e  C o u r t  r e c e s s e d  a t  1 2 : 3 5  p . m . )
(Thereupon,  the  cour t  reconvened a t  r - :30  p .m. )

THE COURT: Very well. All r ight , dny
prel iminary matters?

MR. MENDELSOHN:

THE COURT: Mr.

No, Your Honor.

Mendel-sohn, f  asked you to
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think over

MR.

THE

MR.

superwisors

quest ions.

s t i l 1

Ehe recess whether you needed addi t ional ,

MENDELSOHN: your Honor r __

COURT: --  addi t ional  quest ions Eo ask.
MENDELSOIIN: Af ter consulting with *y
and my col league, there are some addi t ional
f 've cut  out a Iot  but  there are some that f

THE COURT: What

MR. MENDELSOHN:

what, s your time

i t ' s  u p  t o  m e ,  1 0

review the

for us Eo

1 5 ,

r f

est imate?

minutes

that i f

j ury

charge

at, most.

THE COURT: Very weI l .  f t  seems to me
that 's the case, by the t ime that we

inst ruet ions,  i t  w i l l  not  be poss ib le

and have closings.

The, the sole quest ion that r  am asking mysel f ,
as r  s i t  here,  is  whether r  bother wi th the eharge
today, have them report tomorrow, have the closings and
give them the jury instruct ions at  that  t ime, the,  the
physical  instruct ions that they wourd take back with
them.

or whether r  defer instruct ing unt i r  tomorrow
morning, have the instruct ions,  have the closings, give
them the, the jury instruct ions for  use in the
de l - ibera t ions  and.  t ,hen we ' re ,  we, re  done w i th  i t .  r
wi l l  entertain recommend.at ions f  rom counseL.
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MS' Lru: your Honor, r  think either way would
be fine with us. what we wourd. prefer is if your Honor
could make a decision as to what instruct ions you are
going to give. That would be helpful to us in doing our
f inal preparat ions for our closing

THE COURT: yeah, we,re gonna do that
abso l -u te ly  th is  a f te rnoon,  so  tha t ,  tha t ,s

be  an  iseue.  We,11 have d iscuss ion  on  the

and my recommendation which f,m making now

wil l  make at  the t ime of  the

We1I,  I  don' t  know yet whether Ms. Sassower

bel ieves that she can proceed, to the extent

represents that she ean. My recommendation

be that Mr- Gordstone hand.re the technical  aspects of
rev iew o f  these ju ry  ins t ruc t ions .

f have no idea what she, s going to say

response to that .  r f  she chooses to be involved

d iscuss ion ,  i t  may pro t rac t  mat te rs .  we w i l l

neverthel_ess conclude our discussion on the jury

instruet ions before we adjourn for  t ,he day.

And then the question then becomes whether I
charge them and then let t,hem go or whether

tomorrow morning, charge them and have the

MS. LfU: your Honor,  in that  case, f  th ink

not going to

instruct , ions

and which I

that she

is going to

t_n

in the

f  wa i t  un t i ]

s ta tements .
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that we would prefer that your Honor charge them in the
morning.

That way we won't have to keep them when we,re
having discussions about the instruetions and then bring
them back and. charge them. They can go about their
business and we can f in ish th is al l  up in a day.

THE COURT: Very we1l .  Al l  r ight ,  Mr.
Goldstone.

MR' GOLDSTONE: yeah, r  would just  ask that Ms.
sassower be brought out so that she can participate in
the  d iscuss ions

THE COURT: Sher your statement is noted for

the record'  wi th regard to my schedul i rg,  r  real-ry

don ' t  need her  p resence fo r  tha t :

But wi th regard to the actual  jury instruct ions

themserves, to the extent,  that  she,s able to refrain

from disruptive behavior, certainly she can be involved.

in  tha t .

the  door .

( p a u s e )

THE COURT: A11 r ight  .  WeLl ,  Mr.  Gold.stone, i t
seems to me that the in i t ia l  inquiry at  r_east is whether
or not your c l ient  bel ieves that she can part ic ipate

MR. GOLDSTONE: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: AlI right. Now we need to unlock
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fur ther in these proceedings.

And f don,t know how you,re gonna be able to
ascertain that  wi thout speaking with her.  Have you had
the opportunity to do so?

MR . GOLDSTONE : No, I have not been able t,o
speak with Ms. Sassower.  And f  would,  f  would ask for
that opportunity.

THE COURT: please go ahead.

( R e c e s s )

THE .LERK: uni ted states vs.  Elena sassower,
C a s e  N o .  M 4 i _ 1 3 - 0 3 .

MR' MENDELSOHN: Aaron Mendersohn for the
Uni ted  Sta tes

THE COLIRT: Very we1l .

MS '  Lru:  , -Tessie Liu for  the uni ted states.

MR. GOLDSTONE: Mark Goldstone, attorney
adviser' And r have a representation after having
spoken with Ms. sassower who was l0cked up at r.unch
break .

She is  w i l l i ng  to  comply  w i th  the  Cour t ,s
order,  orders.  she feels that  she in fact  has been
complying with the court  orders.

That she was simply referrj-ng to matters that
Mr '  Mendelsohn was asking her on cross-examinat, ion and
was providing fair comment based upon what sergeant
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Bignott i  had said on her examination.

So she was upset and., or very upset that four
minutes into her cross she was locked up. But
nevertheless she understands the courtrs rul ing and did
not '  del iberately violate the court,s rul ing and ean, can
l ive with the courtrs rul ings as the court makes those
ru l ings.

THE COIIRT: Very well_. Resume the witness
s tand p lease.

MR. GOLDSTONE: Thank you, your Honor.

TttE COURT: IJ?r_huh.

(Thereupon the defendant resumed the witness
s t a n d .

M S .  S A S S O W E R :  f , d  1 i k e  t o

(rhereupon, the jury returned to the

cour t room a t  I  z  43  p .m.  )

THE couRT: very welr .  p lease be seated. we
wi l l  now resume with the cross-examinat ion of  Ms.
Sassower .  Mr .  Mende lsohn,  p lease inqu i re .

MR. MENDELSOHN:

o  M s '  s a s s o w e r ,  r ' d  l i k e  t o  m o v e  a h e a d  t o  2 0 0 3 .
You were opposed to the nomination of ,Judge wesley to
the  Second C i rcu i t ,  i sn , t  tha t  r igh t?

A yes. f  had documentary evidence of  h is
un f i tness  fo r  any  jud ic ia l  o f f i ce .
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O And by you I mean the Center for Judieial
Accountab i l i t y ,  i snr t  tha t  r igh t?

A yes ,  abso lu te ly .

a Because you are the only fuI I_t ime paid
indiv idual  wi th the Center,  isnrt  that  r ight?

A Our membership dues are $25.

o  Maram,  r ' ve  ask  you a  s t ra igh t fo rward  ques t ion ,
please answer yes or no

A f  am the only fu1l_t ime paid employee of  the
Center for  Judic ia l  Accountabi l i ty .

O Thank you, Ms. Sassower.

Whieh is a membership organizat ion.

THE COttRT : Exeuse me, exeuse me . you, ve

the quest ion,  Iet ,  s move on. Mr.  Mendelsohn.

MR . MENDELSOHN: Okay.

BY MR. MENDELSOHN:

,  a Ms. Sassower,  you submit ted f ive boxes, these
f ive boxes of  document,s,  r ight?

A Uh-huh.

O To the United States Senate .Tud. ic iary

Commi t tee  in  ear ly  2003,  r igh t?  May 2003,  r igh t?

A r hand der-ivered. them on May sth, 2oo3 under a
cover memo r f€s

O But that  wasn,t  enough for you in terms of
expressing your v iews on this nominee, isn,  t  that  r iqhta

answered
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For example,  i t  wasnrt  enough that you also
exchanged e-mai ls wi th senator c l inton,s legis lat ive
correspondent,  Josh Albert .  Didn,t  you exchange e_maiIs
with .Tosh Albert,?

A Senator Cl inton

O Ma,  am,  aga in ,

A and Senator Schumer

O did you exehange

A are the home state senators with
prerogat ives and responsibi l i t ies relat ing to nominees
for the federal  bench in New york.

THE .OURT: Excuse me. The question is did you
exchange e-mails

THE DEFENDAIIT: E-mails and faxes, absolutely.

THE COURT: Very we1l .  Next quest ion.

BY MR. MENDELSOIIN:

O And, Ms. Sassower,  you also spoke on the phone
for  40  minu tes  w i th  senator  c l in ton ,s  eounser ,  Leec ia
Eve,  as  we l l  as  . fosh  ALber t ,  i snr t  tha t  r igh t?

A we had a telephone conference in which they
revealed that they hadn' t

O  M a ' a m ?

A done anything. yes .

O For ty  minu tes ,  r igh t?

A yes ,  tha t ' s  re f lec ted  in  my cor respondence.
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THE COURT: you answered the question. Mr.
Mendelsohn, next question.

BY MR . MEIilDELSOTIN:

0 But that  wasnrt  enough for you ei ther,
A Their  responsibi l i t ies were Eo review,

what was presented by way of evid.enee which they
and refused to do.

O fn your opinion.

A No, Ehey stated as much to me. Which is why r
te lephoned and lef t  a message Eo speak with ehief  of
staff, Tamera Luzzato, oo May 20th at the end. of the day
and on May 21st at the beginning of the day. Because

O  M s .  S a s s o w e r ,  _ _ ?

A their cond.uct was unprofessional and
indefens ib le .

MR . MEIilDELSOHN: your Honor?

, THE couRT: very wel l .  yourve answered as
you have stated your answer to the question. Mr.
Mendelsohn, next,  quest ion.

BY MR. MENDELSOHN:

O After al l  that ,  the f ive boxes, the exchanging

was i t?

review

fa i led

of  e -mai ls ,  t ,he  40  minu tes  where  Leec ia

A1bert  l is tened to your concerns about

the phone, that  wasn,t  enough, r ight?

1286
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You intended to go to that hearing just. as rzou
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went to the hear ing in L996, r ight? you intended
me be clear here.  you intended to test i fy at  that
hear ing on May 22nd,,  2003, isn, t  that  r ight?

A  N o .

O when you stood. an6 you said whatever it was
sa id ,  you  in tended to  tes t i f y ,  d idn , t  you?

A What f  precisely said

you

THE COURT: We don,t  need what you said.
THE WfTNESS: __ was may f  test i fy.

THE COURT: Excuse ft€, excuse me. We heed to
whether you intended to test i fy.

THE WTTNESS: How could r  intend to test i fy i f
f  hadnr t  been g iven permiss ion  to  tes t i f y?

THE COURT: Very wel l .

BY MR. MENDELSOHN:

O Ma,am, when you asked

A I  had to  ask .

O Ma,am, when you asked the quest ion,  may f
L e s t i f y  t  - -

A  y e s .

O d idn ,  t  you  in tend to  tes t i f y?

A No '  r f  r  in tended to  tes t  ! f y ,  r  wou ld  have

hear

raeed up to

wi ld ly and

tes t i f y ing .

the front of the room, raised my hands
said f  demand to test i fy,  f  insist  upon

1287
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PAGE,, -

rns tead,  r  po l i te ly  and respeet fu l l y  rose  f rom

my chair  at  an appropr iate point ,  indeed af ter  the

hear ing had already been adjourned, to request i f  r
m igh t  be  permi t ted  to  tes t i f y .

fn other words,  f  was request ing of  the
chairman i f  r  might give under oath statements

pertaining to the unf iL,ness of  th is nominee, as to
which there had been no invest igat ion by the senate
Judic iary commit tee aL ar-r  and no invest igat ion by

New york 's  own home s ta te  senators .  A11 0 f  wh ich

was

THE COURT: Very well

MS. SASSOWER: chronic led in my

THE COURT: Excuse me.

MS. SASSOWER: correspondence.

THE .OURT: Excuse me. The quest ion has been

answered to the extent that  you,ve given a response.

Mr.  Mendelsohn?

MR- MENDELSOHN: your Honor,  now 'm confused..

BY MR. MENDELSOHN:

o r f  you stood up and said may r  test i fy and now
i t ' s  your  tes t imony t ,ha t  you  d idn , t  want  to  tes t i f y ,

what is it that you were trying to d.o when you stood and
s a i d  m a y  I  t e s t i f y ?

A f  d idn ,  t  o f  course  T  wanted  to  tes t i f y .  The

1281
6 9 5
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question is whether r would be given permission. For
that r needed to ask whether r might be permitted.

Because r  had not received any let ter .  unl ike
L996, r  had received no let ter  communicat i .on or oral

communication from anyone so authorized that r would not
be  permi t ted  to  tes t i f y .

THE COURT: Very we1l. Mr. Mendelsohn, nexE
quest ion .

BY MR. MENDELSOHN:

o And after you stood. and said may r testify and
the ehairman asked for order to be restored, you

continued to, to speak, d.id.n, t you?

A Absolutely not,, that, '  s not what the vid.eo shows

a t  a l l .

THE COURT: Very we1l

MS.  SASSOWER:  I  was  comple te ly  s i len t .

THE COURT: Very wel l .  Next quest ion.

BY MR. MENDELSOHN:

o Ms.  sassower ,  i snr t  i t  t rue  tha t  you  rea l l y  a re
just gomeone who cannot take no for an answer?

A fs that  your guest ion to me?

o r t  i s .  Aren ' t  you  someone who jus t  re fuses  to
take  no  fo r  an  answer ,  Ms.  Sassower?

A As the correspond.ence ref  'ects,  there was a
question as to whether any of the senaLors were
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personally aware of what had been presented in
opposit ion to ,Judge Wesley.

r requested Leecia Eve and. ,Josh Albert to bring
th is  mat ter  to  senator  cr in tonrs  personar  a t tent ion,
which they refused to do.

My correspondence with the senate .Tudiciary
commit tee ref lects my concern that the senators,  as
opposed to their  under l ing staf f ,  were unaware of  th is
m a t t e r .

r wanted there t,o be no doubt that they had
reviewed this matter and there was no evidence that t,hey
had.

THE .OURT: Very well. Any further ques'ions,

Mr.  Mendelsohn?

MR. MENDELSOHN: Thank you.

THE .OURT: you, re welcome. All r ight . AII
r ight ,  very weII .  you may step down, Ms. Sassower.

MS. SASSOWER: Thank you.

THE COIIRT: Ladies and gentlemen, we have
remaining essent ia l ly  three components to th is case.
The f i rst  is  that  r  wi l l  g ive you instruct ions.  They, re
simir-ar to the instruct ions that r  gave you at  the
o u t s e t .

The second component is cl0sing argument where
you wi l l  hear f rom the at torneys and Ms. sassower again,

1290 6 9 7


